
WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 
AGENDA FOR SPECIAL MEETING, 

04/19/2023, 7pm 
 Whitewater Township Hall 

5777 Vinton Road, Williamsburg, MI  49690 
Phone 231-267-5141/Fax 231-267-9020 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81004360656?pwd=QmdUZTdqZFhaWmUreWxsNDcyUWpZZz09 

Meeting ID: 810 0436 0656 Passcode: 284017 
One tap mobile +13017158592,,81004360656#,,,,*284017# US 
Dial by your location +1 301 715 8592 US 

1. Mic Check / Call to Order
2. Roll Call of Members
3. Set/Adjust Meeting Agenda
4. Declaration of Conflict of Interest

5. Public Comment:   Any person shall be permitted to address a meeting of the Planning Commission.
Public comments shall be carried out in accordance with the following rules and procedures:

a. Comments shall be directed to the Commission, with questions directed to the Chair.
b. Any person wishing to address the Commission shall speak from the lectern and state his/her

name and address.
c. Persons may address the commission on matters that are relevant to township planning and

zoning issues.
d. No person shall be allowed to speak more than once on the same matter, excluding the time

needed to answer Commission members’ questions.
e. Public comment shall be limited to 3 minutes.

6. Special Meeting Business:
a. Subcommittee Report (DeYoung)
b. Meeting dates 3rd Wednesday of each month discussion (PC)
c. Zoning and General Ordinance “Binders” update/explanation (Steelman)
d. Overview/Function of Planning Commission (Mielnik)
e. Master Plan Resident Outreach Subcommittee (PC + Residents; Beam, McElwee, Peltonen)

1. Recommendation to PC – Approve a new survey be completed
2. Review Version 3 of the Survey

7. Next Meeting Date May 3, 2023
8. Public Comment
9. Commission Discussion/Comments
10. Adjournment

Whitewater Township will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services to individuals with 
disabilities who are planning to attend.  Contact the Township Supervisor at 231-267-5141 x23. 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81004360656?pwd=QmdUZTdqZFhaWmUreWxsNDcyUWpZZz09


 

Page 1 of 2 Planning Commission Subcommittee 04/13/2023 DRAFT 

WHITEWATER TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 

SUBCOMMITTEE  

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES  

April 13, 2023 

 

Call to Order at 8:30 a.m. 

ZA  will chair the subcommittee and will be a non-voting member of the team. 

 

Roll Call:  Rebant, DeYoung, Keaton, Zoning Administrator Hall, Planner Mielnik  

                  Absent: None 

Also in attendance:   Recording Secretary MacLean 

Zoom attendance:  None 
          

Set / Adjust Agenda:   

 

Declaration of Conflict of Interest:   
 

Public Comment:  None 

Opened at 8:31 a.m. 

None 

 

Special Meeting Business:   

1. Budget Expenditure Process discussion stated that $32,000 is budgeted for outside, professional services.  

There is a problem that needs to be addressed. The money to have the planner work done is budgeted.  The PC 

has a responsibility to use the funds in the best way possible. 

The budget set forward is a standard government budget.  The PC has historically under spent the approved 

budgeted funds.  

The PC should be in control of the monies for the planner.  The way it is the Board is spending the PC budget 

funds. 

The supervisor is looking to get a purchase order process in place for the PC.  (Would that different than the 

regular PO process?)  

Recommended best practice is to have a special meeting with the PC and the Board.   

Get the topic of PC communication on a Board agenda with all or most of the PC members in attendance.  

Request a 5-15 minute slot for the PC at each board meeting to get the two boards working together.   

The Board liaison to the PC has not been utilized well so far.   

Present at the board meeting during the PC presentation and request a slot on the agenda, preferably under old 

business or before old business if there is a permission or vote required / requested to spend money. 

Discussion of Randy’s contract.  Randy is under the impression that everything must be approved by the 

Supervisor.  May want to review the contract details.  The PC should be in control of that and the monies for the 

planner.  

May need to look at the planner contract and have it reviewed.  Possibly have the contract set to be under the 

purview of the PC with general authority by the Board, specific funds determined by the PC. 

 

Hall believes there should be more funds for training.  The PC is the Planner’s “tool kit” so education is vital.  

The PC needs the basics and then rely on the professionals, the Planner, the ZA, the legal department, for the 

details.  The PC does not need to know the nuances or have a degree. 

 

Recommend to the full PC to present to the Board the budget expenditure(s) the way the PC wants to spend the 

professional services fees for the zoning ordinance, master plan, etc.  DeYoung will bring details to the PC at the 

next meeting, April 19.   

 

Recommend to the full PC that the PC can track their own budget in a spread sheet.   Rebant volunteered to do the 

spread sheet.   

 

Recommend to the full PC to request a 15 minute time slot at each board meeting to address the PC issues and 

items – sharing a progress report / working que.  Would also need to request a time slot in the agenda for any 



 

Page 2 of 2 Planning Commission Subcommittee 04/13/2023 DRAFT 

presented items that may require any Board approval that needs to be made. 

 

With a meeting date change you can get an urgent item on the next upcoming Board agenda.  Non urgent items 

can be scheduled into the next month.  It will be key to get the time slot on the agenda.  It gives more flexibility.  

Will need Rachel’s input since she has the majority of the preparation for the meeting packets and the gathering of 

and presentation of data to the Board. 

Will bring the pluses and minuses of a date change to the full PC for discussion. 

  

2. Municode information can be used to copy/paste to eliminate retyping everything.  (discussion included in other 

topic discussion) 

 

3. Process to complete the rewrite of the Zoning Ordinance so it is in an editable and consistent format. Mielnik will 

bring more info back to the April 19 meeting with a sample. (discussion included in other topic discussion) 

 

4. Workflow process discussion ensued regarding the priorities, Master Plan, zoning ordinance formatting, zoning 

ordinance amendments.  Past, current and future activities review is used in preparation of an annual budget.  

 

5. Any other related topic the committee wishes to discuss.   Discussion of the zoning ordinance regarding non-

conformities ensued and the general process of amendments. 

 

Will discuss continuation of this subcommittee at the next meeting.  Bob likes Thursday mornings.  Consider monthly. 

Tentatively schedule for May 11, 8:30 a.m. 

 

Next Meeting April 19, 2023 at 7 p.m. 

Next Regular Meeting May 3, 2023, 7 p.m. 
 

 

Public Comment:   

Opened at 9:58 a.m 

None 

 

Committee discussion:   Productive meeting.  Can see the value in continuing this subcommittee. 
 

Adjournment:  9:59 a.m.   

 
 

Respectfully Submitted 

Lois MacLean,  

Recording Secretary  

 



2023 MONDAY

  CALENDAR YEAR FIRST DAY OF WEEK

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday

27 28 29 30 31 01 02

03 04 05 06 07 08 09

10 11 12 13 14 15 16

17 18 19 20 21 22 23

PC Special APRIL Meeting 
Packet Deadline (18 hours 

Law - 48 hours ByLaws)

PC Special APRIL 
Meeting 

PC Regular MAY Meeting 
Submital (ZA) Deadline (10 

working days - ByLaws)

24 25 26 27 28 29 30

TB Regular MAY Meeting 
FINAL Packet Due (11 

business days)

PC Regular MAY Meeting 
Packet Posting Deadline (7 

days - ByLaws)

TB JUNE Regular Meeting 
Agenda Placeholder Due (At 

Agenda creation)

01 02 03 04 05 06 07

PC Regular MAY 
Meeting 

APRIL
CALENDAR MONTH



2023 MONDAY

  CALENDAR YEAR FIRST DAY OF WEEK

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday

01 02 03 04 05 06 07

PC Regular MAY 
Meeting 

PC Proposed MAY Meeting 
Submital (ZA) Deadline (10 

working days - ByLaws)

08 09 10 11 12 13 14

TB Regular MAY 
Meeting

PC Proposed MAY Meeting 
Packet Posting Deadline (7 

days - ByLaws)

TB Proposed JUNE 
Placeholder Due (At 

Agenda creation)

15 16 17 18 19 20 21

Proposed MAY PC 
Meeting

22 23 24 25 26 27 28

PC Regular JUNE Meeting 
Submital (ZA) Deadline (10 

working days - ByLaws)

29 30 31 01 02 03 04

HOLIDAY TB Regular JUNE Meeting 
FINAL Packet Due (11 

business days)

PC Regular JUNE Meeting 
Packet Posting Deadline (7 

days - ByLaws)

TB JULY Regular Meeting 
Agenda Placeholder Due (At 

Agenda creation)

05 06 07 08 09 10 11

PC Regular JUNE 
Meeting

MAY
CALENDAR MONTH



2023 MONDAY

  CALENDAR YEAR FIRST DAY OF WEEK

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday

29 30 31 01 02 03 04

TB Regular JUNE Meeting 
FINAL Packet Due (11 

business days)

PC Regular JUNE Meeting 
Packet Posting Deadline (7 

days - ByLaws)

TB JULY Regular Meeting 
Agenda Placeholder Due (At 

Agenda creation)

PC Proposed JUNE Meeting 
Submital (ZA) Deadline (10 

working days - ByLaws)

05 06 07 08 09 10 11

PC Regular JUNE 
Meeting

PC Proposed JUNE Meeting 
Packet Posting Deadline (7 

days - ByLaws)

TB Proposed JULY 
Placeholder Due (At 

Agenda creation)

12 13 14 15 16 17 18

TB Regular JUNE 
Meeting

Proposed JUNE PC 
Meeting

19 20 21 22 23 24 25

26 27 28 29 30 01 02

TB Regular JULY  Meeting 
FINAL Packet Due (11 

business days)

PC Regular JULY Meeting 
Submital (ZA) Deadline (10 

working days - ByLaws)

03 04 05 06 07 08 09

HOLIDAY PC Regular JULY Meeting 
Packet Posting Deadline (7 

days - ByLaws)

TB AUGUST Regular Meeting 
Agenda Placeholder Due (At 

Agenda creation)

JUNE
CALENDAR MONTH



 

REVISED Resolution #PC23-01 

Resolution for Whitewater Township Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting Schedule for 2023/2024 

Whitewater Township 

Grand Traverse County, Michigan 

Be It Resolved that the Whitewater Township Planning Commission will meet in regular sessions for the 2023/2024 fiscal year on the 

following dates at 7 p.m., unless otherwise noted, at the Whitewater Township Hall, 5777 Vinton Rd., Williamsburg, Michigan. 

         Wednesday, April 5, 2023 

                                                           Wednesday, May 3, 2023  May 17, 2023  

    Wednesday, June 7, 2023  June 21, 2023 

    Wednesday, July 5, 2023  July 19, 2023     

                                                             Wednesday, August 2, 2023 August 16, 2023 

    Wednesday, September 6, 2023 September 20, 2023 

        Wednesday, October 4, 2023 October 18, 2023 

    Wednesday, November 1, 2022 November 15, 2023 

    Wednesday, December 6, 2023 December 20, 2023 

    Wednesday, January 3, 2024 January 17, 2024 

    Wednesday, February 7, 2024 February 21, 2024 

    Wednesday, March 6, 2024 March 20, 2024 

A motion to adopt the foregoing Revised Resolution was made by ______________ and seconded by _________________. 

Upon roll call vote, the following voted: 

 DeYoung - 

 Jacobson -    

 Keaton -  

 Rebant -  

 Steelman -   

 Wroubel -   

Board Rep. Vollmuth -   

Resolution declared adopted. 

I, ___________________________, Secretary of the Whitewater Township Planning Commission, Grand Traverse County, Michigan, 

do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of certain proceedings taken by the Whitewater Township Planning 

Commission of said municipality at a meeting held on _____________________________, relative to the adoption of Revised 

Resolution #PC23-01. 

         __________________________________ 

          



PAGE 1 OF 8 

 Whitewater Township Planning Commission Bylaws 

Adoption Date: March 1, 2023 

The following rules of procedure are hereby adopted by the Whitewater Township Planning 
Commission to facilitate the performance of its duties as outlined in the Michigan Planning 
Enabling Act, Public Act 33 of 2008, MCL 125.3801, et seq., and the Michigan Zoning Enabling 
Act, Public Act 110 of 2006, MCL 125.3101, et seq.  

SECTION 1: MEMBERSHIP 

A. Membership Size - The Planning Commission (PC) shall consist of seven (7)
members.

B. Membership Terms of Office – Members are appointed by the Township Supervisor
for staggered three-year terms with the approval of the Township Board and expire
December 31.  Members are expected to take the Oath of Office and serve until their
term expires and a successor has been appointed as provided above.

C. Membership Departure - Members who are unable or unwilling to serve the entire
terms for which they were appointed or who do not wish to be considered for
reappointment shall provide sixty (60) days advance written notice of that fact to the
Township Supervisor so that a successor may be appointed and approved in a timely
manner that does not require the PC to function with less than the seven (7) members
provided.

D. Membership Qualification - All members shall be qualified electors of the Township
of Whitewater, except that one member may be a non-qualified elector.

E. Membership Representation - Membership shall be representative of the important
segments of the community including:

Agriculture  

Natural Resources/Environmental 

Recreation  

Education  

Public Health/Safety 

Government  

Transportation  

Industry  

Commerce  

Waterfront Owner  

Building Trades  

Resident at Large  

04/19/2023

Trustee01
Highlight



PAGE 2 OF 8 

F. Township Board Representation – One member of the Township Board shall serve
as a member of the PC.  His/her term shall coincide with their term of office on the
Whitewater Township Board of Trustees. The Township Supervisor is ineligible to
serve in this capacity.  As a Township Board representative, he or she shall prepare
and share a report on PC activities at Board meetings, and shall act as a primary
liaison between the PC and the Board.  The Township Board representative shall also
present proposed PC action items at Township Board meetings for consideration. The
Township Board representative may not serve as an officer of the PC.  The Township
Board representative shall also inform the PC of Township Board activities, actions,
and goals.

G. Zoning Board of Appeals Representation – The Michigan Zoning Enabling Act
requires Townships that enact a zoning ordinance to have a Zoning Board of Appeals
(ZBA). The ZBA is responsible for ruling on appeals of administrative decisions and
zoning ordinance requirements.  The processes are explained in the ZBA handbook
published by the Michigan Municipal League, and in the Whitewater Township Zoning
Ordinance itself. One member of the PC shall be appointed by the supervisor to serve
as a member of the (ZBA). His/her term shall coincide with their appointment to the
PC.  The PC chair shall provide the supervisor with a recommendation for appointment
following consultation with the PC membership.  The PC member reports to the ZBA
on relevant PC actions, proposed ordinances and, developments etc..., and responds
to questions regarding the spirit and intent of ordinances. The PC member reports
back to the PC on ZBA decisions and any issues the ZBA would like assistance on.

H. Meeting Participation - The Township Attorney, Planner, Zoning Administrator and
any township planning staff shall have the ability to participate in discussions of the PC
as they deliberate on agenda items during meetings.

I. Zoning Administrator - The Zoning Administrator shall carry out all responsibilities
associated with an employment contract, or job description (if an employee).  Such
responsibilities should include assisting with the development of the PC annual report,
preparation of required legal notices and preparation of materials needed to support
development-related PC action items.

J. Planner - Subject to applicable contractual terms, the Planner may assist with updates
to the Master Plan and zoning ordinance amendments. The Planner may also assist
with independent reviews of development-related PC action items (special use
approvals, site plans, etc...).

SECTION 2: OFFICERS 

A. Selection and Tenure - At the first regular meeting each January, the PC shall select
a Chairperson, Vice Chairperson and Secretary. All officers shall serve a term of one
year and shall be eligible for re-election for consecutive terms for the same office.  The
newly elected officers shall assume their responsibilities at the next regular meeting.  If
due to unforeseen circumstances, the PC is unable to elect officers at the January
meeting, those officers whose terms as officers have expired and who remain as
active members of the PC shall continue their services as officers until elections are
held.



PAGE 3 OF 8 

B. Chairperson - The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings, appoint committees and
perform such other duties as may be ordered by the PC, including recommending the
ZBA Representative to the Township Board when a vacancy occurs.  Other roles and
responsibilities include:

1. Preside at all meetings

2. Appoint committees

3. Agenda creation and submission

4. Inform Clerk of any necessary meeting date and/or time changes within 48 hours of
known change

5. Create Action Item list and distribute within 72 business hours of meeting to PC
members

C. Vice Chairperson - The Vice Chairperson shall act in the capacity of the chairperson
in his/her absence. In the event the office of Chairperson becomes vacant, the Vice
Chairperson shall succeed to this office for the unexpired term, and the PC shall select
a successor to the office of Vice Chairperson for the unexpired term.

D. Secretary - The Secretary shall execute documents in the name of the PC and shall
perform such other duties as the PC may determine. The Secretary may be assisted
by a Recording Secretary and/or the Zoning Administrator in the performance of
his/her duties. Other roles and responsibilities include:

Ensure hall setup is complete 5 minutes prior to meeting start time (mics checked, 
name tags, recording equipment, Zoom, chairs, tables, etc.) 

Conduct Roll Calls 

Monitor zoom & equipment 

Take notes 

Assist with meeting packet organization and posting in a timely manner. 

SECTION 3: MEETINGS 
The business the PC may perform shall be conducted at a public meeting held in compliance 
with the Open Meetings Act. The PC may establish reasonable rules and regulations in order to 
minimize the possibility of disrupting the meeting.  

A. Regular Meetings – Meetings of the PC shall be held on the First Wednesday of each
month.  All meetings shall take place at Whitewater Township Hall, 5777 Vinton Road,
Williamsburg, MI  49690 at 7:00 P.M.  When a regular meeting falls on a legal holiday
or upon a day resulting in a conflict, the PC shall, if possible, select a suitable alternate
meeting date in the same month as the originally scheduled meeting.

Notice of regular PC meetings shall be posted at Township Hall each year in 
accordance with the Open Meetings Act and on the township website.  

Third

Trustee01
Highlight



PAGE 4 OF 8 

B. Special Meetings - Special meetings may be called by the Chairperson or upon
written request to the secretary by at least two members of the PC.  Notice of special
meetings shall be given to the members of the PC at least 48 hours prior to the
meeting. Such notice shall state the purpose, time and location of the special meeting
and shall be posted in accordance with the Open Meetings Act.

C. Notice - Notice required for specific planning, zoning or other land use actions will be
given in accordance with the Michigan Planning Enabling Act, the Michigan Zoning
Enabling Act, Land Division Act, or other applicable statute.  All PC agendas and
notices will be posted on the Township website, whitewatertownship.org. and in all
other Township designated locations.

D. Public Hearings - All public hearings held by the PC must be held as part of a regular
or special meeting of the PC.

Public Hearings that will result in the consideration of amending the Zoning 
Ordinance text or map shall be set by motion of the PC.  

Public Hearings that are required for site plan and/or special use consideration 
may be set in accordance with the PC regular schedule by the Zoning 
Administrator.   

E. Agenda – Per, Section 2B above, the chairperson is responsible for preparing a
tentative agenda, with assistance from the Zoning Administrator and/or Recording
Secretary, if requested.  The agenda may be modified by quorum of the PC. The PC
may only take action on items that appear on the agenda.

F. Quorum - Four (4) members of the PC shall constitute a quorum for transacting
business and taking official action for all matters with the exception of Master Plan
adoption or amendments (see G below).

G. Voting - An affirmative vote of 2/3 of the members of the PC is required to recommend
approval of the master plan or amendments to the plan or to amend these bylaws.
Unless otherwise required by statute, other actions or motions placed before the PC
may be adopted by a majority vote of the members present and voting, as long as a
quorum is present. Voting shall be by voice vote; a roll call vote shall be required if
requested by any PC member or directed by the chairperson. Except in the case of
conflict of interest, all PC members, including the Chairperson and ex officio member,
shall vote on all matters.

H. Public Records - All meetings, minutes, records, documents, correspondence and
other materials of the PC shall be open to public inspection in accordance with the
Freedom of Information Act, except as may otherwise be provided by law.

I. Parliamentary Procedure – Parliamentary procedure in PC meetings shall be
governed by Roberts Rules of Order.

SECTION 4: DUTIES OF THE PC 
The PC shall perform the following duties: 



PAGE 5 OF 8 

A. Prepare, review, and update a master plan as a guide for development within the
Township’s planning jurisdiction.

B. Take such action on petitions, staff proposals and Township Board requests for
amendments to the Zoning Ordinance as required.

C. Take such action on petitions, staff proposals and Township Board requests for
amendments to the Master Plan as required.

D. At the beginning of each year the Chairperson shall appoint one member of the PC to
prepare an annual written report of the PC’s accomplishments, development and
planning activities for the Township Board. As required by the Michigan Planning
Enabling Act, this report will include the status of planning activities, including
recommendations regarding actions by the Township Board. This report will be
presented to the PC for approval before presentation to the Township Board.

E. Take such actions as authorized or required by the Michigan Planning Enabling Act.

F. Take such actions as authorized or required by the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, and
Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance.

G. Review, approve and submit an annual budget to the Supervisor, on or before the first
Township Board meeting in January of each year.

H. Perform other duties and responsibilities or respond as requested by any Township
Board or Commission.

SECTION 5: ABSENCES AND REMOVALS  

A. To be excused, members of the PC shall notify the PC Chairperson, or Township Staff
when they intend to be absent from a meeting. Failure to make this notification prior to
the meeting shall result in an unexcused absence.

B. Members may be removed by the Township Board for misfeasance, malfeasance, or
nonfeasance in office upon written charges and after a public hearing.

C. Following three consecutive absences or six within any 12-month period, the PC
Chairperson shall present to the Township Board a recommendation for dismissal or
continued service of a member.

SECTION 6: CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
During the Declaration of Conflict of Interest portion of the agenda, PC member(s) shall disclose 
the potential conflict of interest to the full PC membership.  Failure of a member to disclose a 
potential conflict of interest as required by these bylaws constitutes malfeasance in office.  



PAGE 6 OF 8 

Conflict of interest is defined as, and a PC member shall declare a conflict of interest and 
abstain from participating in PC deliberations and voting on a request, when:   

A. An immediate family member is involved in any request for which the PC is asked to
make a decision. “Immediate family member” is defined as a spouse, mother, father,
sister, brother, son, or daughter, including an adopted child.

B. The PC member has a business or financial interest in the property involved in the
request or has a business or financial interest in the applicant’s company, agency or
association.

C. The PC member owns, or has a financial interest in, property that is required to receive
a notice of a public hearing as required by the Whitewater Township Zoning Ordinance
on an application under consideration by the PC.  A financial interest is herein defined
as an ownership stake in an equity security or debt security issued by an entity,
including the rights and obligations to acquire such an interest.

D. These guidelines shall be superseded when the “rule of necessity” is invoked.

If there is a question whether a conflict of interest exists or not, the question shall be put before 
the PC.  Whether a conflict of interest exists or not shall be determined by a majority vote of the 
remaining members of the PC.  

In the event that a conflict is declared, the member shall remove themselves from the meeting 
table until the agenda item is concluded.   

SECTION 7:  COMPENSATION  

PC members will receive compensation on a per meeting basis as determined by the Township 
of Whitewater Board of Trustees.  PC members may receive reimbursement for travel and 
expenses with recommendation by the PC and approval by the Township Board.  

SECTION 8:  EDUCATION 

Members shall complete one training/educational program each year. Training may be provided 
when available at regular meetings of the PC by other PC members, the Planner or Zoning 
Administrator and will qualify as acceptable training.  Additional training from professional or 
educational organizations is also encouraged.   

SECTION 9:  ORDER OF BUSINESS 
The order of business shall be as follows: 



PAGE 7 OF 8 

Mic Check, Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance  

Roll Call of PC Members  

Set/Adjust Meeting Agenda  

Declaration of Conflict of Interest pertinent to agenda items 

Public Comment – Any person shall be permitted to address a meeting of the PC. 
Public comments shall be carried out in accordance with the following rules and 
procedures:   

a. Comments shall be directed to the PC, with questions directed to the Chair.
b. Any person wishing to address the PC shall speak from the lectern (or use raise

hand feature if Zoom is being utilized) and state his/her name and address.
c. Persons may address the PC on matters that are relevant to Township planning

and zoning issues.
d. No person shall be allowed to speak more than once on the same matter,

excluding the time needed to answer a PC members’ questions.
e. Public comment shall be limited to 3 minutes per person.

Public Hearing 

a. Open public hearing/ state time.
b. Request those attending sign attendance sheet.
c. State date of public hearing notice publication and newspaper published in.
d. State purpose of public hearing.
e. Brief Introductory Presentation (Zoning Admin. Planner, Applicant/Agent, etc.).
f. Read any written comments received.
g. Receive public comment.
h. Close public hearing/state time.

Questions shall be addressed through the Chair during the public hearing.  PC 
discussion and action shall take place after the public hearing is closed.  Action may 
also take place at a subsequent PC meeting.   

Approval of Minutes of Previous Meeting(s)  

Correspondence  

Reports/Presentations/Announcements/Comments 

a. Zoning Administrator
b. Chair
c. Township Board Representative
d. ZBA Representative
e. Committee Reports
f. Additional Items

Unfinished Business  

New Business  

Next Meeting Agenda (Review action items, due dates, meeting date/time) 

Public Comment  

PC Discussion/Comments  

Continuing Education (5-15 minutes at each meeting)  

Adjournment  



PAGE 8 OF 8 

SECTION 10:  EX-PARTE COMMUNICATIONS 
Pursuant to the Open Meetings Act, a “meeting” is any gathering of a quorum of members of a 
governmental body to discuss, or take action on, official business or policy.  The term “meeting” 
also applies to information-gathering and fact-finding sessions at any location where a quorum 
of members is present and discussions include a public business item.  All meetings must be 
property noticed and advertised pursuant to the Open Meetings Act.    

Members of the PC may not email, text or engage in other forms of electronic communication 
during, or outside of formal meetings for the purpose of sharing information or asking questions 
related to any action item.  Additionally, it is the policy of the PC to not take part in meetings of 
three or more PC members at any location with an applicant to discuss a pending action item.  
Such communication may constitute deliberations toward decision-making or an actual decision. 

SECTION 11: SUBMITTAL DEADLINES 
To facilitate timely action on agenda items, it is the policy of the PC to require complete 
applications, applicable fees and related supporting material to be submitted to the Zoning 
Administrator no less than ten working days before a scheduled PC meeting. This provides time 
to review material, determine its completeness, place it on the meeting agenda and include all 
relevant materials in the meeting packet. If changes, updates, or additional information related 
to application for an action item is provided less than ten working days before a PC meeting, the 
PC reserves the right to defer consideration of such additional or updated material to a 
subsequent meeting.     

SECTION 12: MEETING PACKETS 
To ensure that PC members and the public have adequate time to review the agenda, and 
supporting materials for an upcoming meeting, the PC will aim toward making meeting packets 
available by the close of business on the day that is one week before the meeting.  Pursuant to 
Section 3A above, the packet should be available by 5 PM on the prior Wednesday.     

SECTION 13:  AMENDMENTS 
These bylaws may be amended at any time following a recommendation of the majority of the 
membership of the PC and subsequent notification to the Township Board. It is the policy of the 
PC to review these by-laws in January of each year and thereafter, make necessary changes to 
maintain a relevant and useful set of rules of conduct and practice.    



9304 Wheeler Oaks Drive, Williamsburg, Michigan 49690    734-770-2698     Email:randy@northplaceplanning.com  

• 

• 

• 

mailto:randy@northplaceplanning.com


9304 Wheeler Oaks Drive, Williamsburg, Michigan 49690    734-770-2698     Email:randy@northplaceplanning.com  

mailto:randy@northplaceplanning.com


 

 
P a g e  1 | 4 

 

Whitewater Township Master Plan 
Community Survey – Version 3 

 
 
Whitewater Township is beginning the job of updating its Master Plan.  A Master Plan describes the 
history, current state, and future vision for our community.  It is a road map that guides decisions and 
proposes action steps for growth and development in ways desired by residents.  The Whitewater 
Township Planning Commission is leading this process which includes substantial opportunities for voices 
to be heard on a range of issues.  The first opportunity is this community survey.   Please take a few 
moments to consider the questions and provide your thoughts and opinions.  Please also look for other 
opportunities to weigh in later this year, as the Master Plan takes shape.  Your input is valued, appreciated 
and confidential.     
 
 
 
Question Group 1 A Little About You 
 

1. What Age Group Do You Fall Into?  
 
Under 18 35 - 44 65 - 74  
18 - 25   45 - 54 75 and over
26 - 34 55 - 64   

 
 
 

2. Describe your association with Whitewater Township (check all may that apply). 

Residency  Property Ownership Employment 

Full-time resident Own property   I own or I am employed by a business or other entity     
in Whitewater Twp.

Seasonal resident Rent property  I am a self-employed resident, or otherwise work 
from home in Whitewater Township

Not a resident  
 




I am not employed or I am retired. 


 
 
 
3. The map to the right shows Whitewater 

Township divided into quadrants using M-72 
and Elk Lake Road/Williamsburg Road as 
dividers.  Please identify which quadrant you 
live in.  

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

1 
2 
3
4
N/A   



 

 
P a g e  2 | 4 

 

 
 
 
Question Group 2 General Views on Growth and Development 
 
4. Communities often change over time as development occurs. According to each topic below, indicate if you 

think Whitewater Township has changed for the better or worse in the last 10 years.  Circle your choice.   
 

 Rating  
Topic Worse  Neutral  Better 
Quality of Development Occurring 1 2 3 4 5 
Rate or Pace of Development Occurring  1 2 3 4 5 
Kinds of Development Occurring   1 2 3 4 5 
Lack of Infrastructure to Support Development (i.e., 
public water/sewer, other utilities, etc.) 

1 2 3 4 5 

Traffic  1 2 3 4 5 
Other (Explain) _____________________________ 
__________________________________________ 

1 2 3 4 5 

 
5. In terms of the existing pattern of physical development, please indicate an area that you think Whitewater 

Township should address to improve livability:   
 

  Property Maintenance  
Increase Affordable Housing or Local Housing Options 
Increase Retail Options  
Address Traffic Congestion/Dangerous Intersections  
Increase Employment Opportunities  
Develop Convenient Bike Trails and Walking Paths 
Other – Explain _____________________________________________________ 
None _____________________________________________________________ 
 

Question Group 3 Rural Character and Agriculture 
 
6. Loss of rural character is sometimes mentioned as a concern when new development is proposed.  

However, the term “rural character” can be vague.  Please indicate two of the following landscape elements 
that you most associate with rural character in Whitewater Township.  

 
Open fields  
Orchards and other agricultural land  
Woodlots and forests  
 Views of Natural Stream and River Corridors   
 Lake Views 
 Dwellings on very large (20 acre or more) parcels    
 Farm buildings and related architectural elements     
 Roadways with limited development on either side 
 Extended views of undeveloped land across the landscape  
 Other (explain)_____________________________________________________ 
 

7. In your opinion, identify the most scenic view from a public road in all of Whitewater Township 
 
Please be a specific as possible_____________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

8. Much of the land North of M-72 in Whitewater Township is zoned Agricultural (A-1).  The minimum 
required lot size in the Agricultural Zoning District is 1 acre (43,560 square feet – or about 200’ x 217’).  In 
your mind, is this 1-acre minimum lot size appropriate?  

 
Yes   
No   
Not Sure   



 

 
P a g e  3 | 4 

 

 
 

9. Much of the land South of M-72 in Whitewater Township is zoned Recreational (RC-1).  The minimum 
required lot size in the RC-1 District is 5 acres (217,800 square feet – or about 300’ x 725’).  In your mind, is 
this 5-acre minimum lot size appropriate?  

 
Yes   
No   
Not Sure   
 

10. Agricultural tourism is a broad category of activities that can include road-side stands, u-pick operations, 
and other activities incidental to the operation of a farm that brings members of the public to the farm for 
educational, recreational, or retail purposes.  To what degree are you supportive of more agricultural 
tourism activity in Whitewater Township?  

 
 Very Unsupportive  
 Unsupportive   
 Indifferent   
 Supportive  
 Very Supportive  
 
 

Question Group 4 Commercial Development   
 
11. Portions of the M-72 corridor through Whitewater Township lends itself to future commercial development 

and redevelopment.  Generally speaking, what qualities should future commercial development exhibit in 
order to fit within your image of well-planned corridor (pick up to 2)?     

 
Smaller Building Footprints–such as those less than 75,000 sq. ft. (for reference, the Tractor Supply 

store on M-72 is about 20,000 sq. ft. and the Meijer Store is about 200,000 sq. ft.). 
Limited Curb Cuts and Access Roads  
Extensive Landscaping  
Sign Controls (Size, Illumination, Etc.)   
Themed Building Designs and Common Architectural Elements 
Limited Site Lighting 
Mixture Of Uses (Potentially Retail, Services, Office, Residential, Etc.) 
None Of the Above  
Other (Describe)_______________________________________________________ 
Other (Describe)_______________________________________________________ 
 
 

12. The Village of Williamsburg (North of M-72) was once a commercial center.  While some evidence of this 
remains today, many buildings were demolished years ago.  Today we have a mix of public buildings, 
cemetery, residential uses and commercial uses.  Should redevelopment take place in the years to come, 
which of the following scenarios would you most like to see?  Responses to this question may indicate the 
need to adjust existing development standards and permitted land uses in the zoning ordinance.   

 
Encourage redevelopment into a downtown-type setting with small-scale retail, commercial          

services, restaurants and upper floor housing.   
Encourage Higher Density Residential Redevelopment (Townhomes or A Format Similar to Millbrook 

Estates South Of M-72) 
 Something Else (Explain) _______________________________________________________ 

      
 

Question Group 5 Housing  
 
13. Short-term rentals (i.e., Airbnb and VRBO) of private residential homes occur in some communities, and this 

activity is particularly popular in Northern Michigan.  The term "Short-term rental" typically means the 
rental of a dwelling unit for less than 30 consecutive days.  What are your thoughts about whether short-
term rentals should be allowed in Whitewater Township?  (Note: A Bed and Breakfast is different than a 
short-term rental and is permitted as a Special Use in Whitewater Township, and state law could change 
how a local government may regulate short-term rentals in the future).   



 

 
P a g e  4 | 4 

 

 
 

Short-term rentals should be prohibited in Whitewater Township.   
Short-term rentals should be allowed in Whitewater Township without any local regulation. 
Whitewater Township should regulate short-term rental activity in some fashion (i.e., licensing 

mechanism, limits for how many short-term rentals a property owner could operate, limits on how 
many short-term rentals can be approved in a community, etc.) 

Not Sure  
 

 
Question Group 6 Alternative Energy 
 
14. Large solar or wind facilities are not uncommon in Michigan (Neighboring Acme Township approved 50-acre 

solar farm off M-72).   Large solar or wind facilities produce larger amounts of power delivered to the grid, 
and do not include individual systems serving individual properties (i.e., solar panels on roof tops).  There 
are no current plans for an alternative energy facility in Whitewater Township, but what are your thoughts 
about such a facility in the future?    

     
I support alternative energy and believe that the environmental benefits outweigh impacts on the 

appearance of the local rural landscape.    
I support alternative energy, but I also want to see basic approval conditions to minimize impacts on 

the appearance of the local rural landscape.    
I do not support alternative energy systems in a township like Whitewater. 
 
Please share any other thoughts you might have on this issue:  _____________________________  
________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
Question Group 7 General  
 
15. How important is it for the Township to develop or improve the following over the next 10 to 20 years? 

And, do you support paying additional funds for this? 
 

 

Very 
Important 

Somewhat 
Important 

Slightly 
Important 

Not 
Important 

Do you support 
paying additional 

funds for this? 
Yes No 

Village Of Williamsburg       
Shoreline And Waterway Protection        
Community Center       
Fire Protection       
Emergency Medical Services       
Zoning Regulations       
New Township Hall       
Web/Televised Township Meetings       
Walking/Bike Paths       
Farmland/Open Space Preservation       
Availability Of Public Water       
Recreation Facilities       
Community Events/Festivals       
Library       
Senior Services       
Park Facilities       

 
16. What else would you want the Township to know that has not been asked on this survey?  Your answer to 

this question is very important to understanding what residents of Whitewater Township desire. 
 

Please be as specific as possible____________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 


	0 Special Meeting Agenda 04.19.2023
	1 Special Meeting Packet
	WWT PC SPEC SUBCOM MINS 041323 DRAFT
	April 2023 Calendar
	Calendar

	May 2023 Calendar
	Calendar

	June 2023 Calendar
	Calendar

	2023-2024 PC meeting Revised resolution 041923
	Updated Bylaws 04.19.2023 (Meeting Days)
	Randy's write up ROS
	Suvey Version 3


